Public Document

GREATER MANCHESTER HOUSING PLANNING AND
ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
DATE:

Tuesday, 1st February, 2022

TIME:

10.30 am – 12.30 pm

VENUE: The Tootal Buildings (formerly Churchgate House) Broadhurst House, 1st Floor, 56 Oxford Street,
Manchester, M1 6EU

AGENDA
1.

APOLOGIES

2.

CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS

3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

1-4

To receive declarations of interest in any item for discussion at the
meeting. A blank form for declaring interests has been circulated
with the agenda; please ensure that this is returned to the
Governance & Scrutiny Officer 48 hours in advance of the
meeting.
4.

THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 11 JANUARY 2022

5 - 10

To consider the approval of the minutes of the meeting held on 11
January 2022.
5.

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS

11 - 24

Presented by Joanne Heron, Statutory Scrutiny Officer, GMCA

BOLTON
BURY

MANCHESTER ROCHDALE
OLDHAM
SALFORD

STOCKPORT
TAMESIDE

TRAFFORD
WIGAN

Please note that this meeting will be livestreamed via www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk, please speak to a
Governance Officer before the meeting should you not wish to consent to being included in this recording.

6.

WORK PROGRAMME

25 - 28

Presented by Joanne Heron, Statutory Scrutiny Officer, GMCA
7.

POTENTIAL IMPLICATIONS OF NATIONAL RESOURCES AND 29 - 46
WASTE STRATEGY
Report of Councillor Allison Gwynne, Chair of the GMCA Waste
and Recycling Committee

8.

GREATER MANCHESTER GO NEUTRAL - SMART ENERGY 47 - 54
OPPORTUNITY PIPELINE
Report of Mark Atherton, Director of Environment, GMCA

9.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING


08 March 2022; 10:30 am

For copies of papers and further information on this meeting please refer to the website
www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk. Alternatively, contact the following
Governance & Scrutiny Officer: Ninoshka Martins
 ninoshka.martins@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk

This agenda was issued on 24.01.22 on behalf of Julie Connor, Secretary to the
Greater Manchester Combined Authority, Broadhurst House, 56 Oxford Street,
Manchester M1 6EU
2

Declaration of Councillors’ Interests in Items Appearing on the Agenda
Name and Date of Committee……………………………………………………………………

Agenda
Item
Number

Type of Interest - PERSONAL
AND NON PREJUDICIAL Reason
for declaration of interest

NON PREJUDICIAL Reason for
declaration of interest Type of Interest –
PREJUDICIAL Reason for declaration of
interest

Type of Interest – DISCLOSABLE
PECUNIARY INTEREST Reason
for declaration of interest

Page 1
Please see overleaf for a quick guide to declaring interests at GMCA meetings.

Agenda Item 3

Quick Guide to Declaring Interests at GMCA Meetings
Please Note: should you have a personal interest that is prejudicial in an item on the agenda, you should leave the meeting for the duration of the
discussion and the voting thereon.
This is a summary of the rules around declaring interests at meetings. It does not replace the Member’s Code of Conduct, the full
description can be found in the GMCA’s constitution Part 7A.
Your personal interests must be registered on the GMCA’s Annual Register within 28 days of your appointment onto a GMCA committee
and any changes to these interests must notified within 28 days. Personal interests that should be on the register include:
1. Bodies to which you have been appointed by the GMCA
2. Your membership of bodies exercising functions of a public nature, including charities, societies, political parties or trade unions.
You are also legally bound to disclose the following information called Disclosable Personal Interests which includes:

Page 2

1. You, and your partner’s business interests (eg employment, trade, profession, contracts, or any company with which you are
associated).
2. You and your partner’s wider financial interests (eg trust funds, investments, and assets including land and property).
3. Any sponsorship you receive.
Failure to disclose this information is a criminal offence
Step One: Establish whether you have an interest in the business of the agenda
1. If the answer to that question is ‘No’ then that is the end of the matter.
2. If the answer is ‘Yes’ or Very Likely’ then you must go on to consider if that personal interest can be construed as being a prejudicial
interest.

Step Two: Determining if your interest is prejudicial
A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest:
1. where the wellbeing, or financial position of you, your partner, members of your family, or people with whom you have a close
association (people who are more than just an acquaintance) are likely to be affected by the business of the meeting more than it
would affect most people in the area.
2. the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it
is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest.
For a non-prejudicial interest, you must:
1. Notify the governance officer for the meeting as soon as you realise you have an interest.
2. Inform the meeting that you have a personal interest and the nature of the interest.
3. Fill in the declarations of interest form.

Page 3

To note:
1. You may remain in the room and speak and vote on the matter
If your interest relates to a body to which the GMCA has appointed you to, you only have to inform the meeting of that interest if you
speak on the matter.
For prejudicial interests, you must:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Notify the governance officer for the meeting as soon as you realise you have a prejudicial interest (before or during the meeting).
Inform the meeting that you have a prejudicial interest and the nature of the interest.
Fill in the declarations of interest form.
Leave the meeting while that item of business is discussed.
Make sure the interest is recorded on your annual register of interests form if it relates to you or your partner’s business or financial
affairs. If it is not on the Register update it within 28 days of the interest becoming apparent.

You must not:
Participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become aware of your disclosable pecuniary interest during the
meeting participate further in any discussion of the business,
1. participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
MINUTES OF THE GM HOUSING, PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE HELD TUESDAY 11 JANUARY 2022 AT THE TOOTAL
BUILDINGS - BROADHURST HOUSE, 56 OXFORD STREET, MANCHESTER, M1
6EU

PRESENT:
Bolton
Manchester
Oldham
Oldham
Rochdale
Stockport
Stockport
Tameside
Tameside
Wigan

Councillor John Walsh (Chair)
Councillor Mandie Shilton-Godwin
Councillor Barbara Brownridge
Councillor Sam Al Hamdani
Councillor Ashley Dearnley
Councillor Colin MacAlister
Councillor Janet Mobbs
Councillor Mike Glover
Councillor Liam Billington
Councillor Fred Walker

IN ATTENDANCE:
Greater Manchester Mayor
GMCA
GMCA
GMCA
GMCA

HP&E 21/29

Andy Burnham
Anne Morgan
Mark Atherton
Joanne Heron
Ninoshka Martins

WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Martin Hayes (Bury), Linda
Robinson (Rochdale), Akilah Akinola (Trafford), Kevin Procter (Trafford) and Stuart
Dickman (Salford).
HP&E 21/30

CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS

The GM Mayor joined the meeting and advised members on the situation around the
introduction of the Clean Air Zone. It was reported that Government had issued a legal
directive in March 2020 that required the 10 GM local authorities to address the problem
around the lack of clean air by introducing a Category C Charging Clean Air Zone which principally addresses commercial vehicles including HGVs, buses, coaches,

BOLTON
BURY

MANCHESTER
OLDHAM

ROCHDALE
SALFORD

Page 5

STOCKPORT
TAMESIDE

TRAFFORD
WIGAN

minibuses, vans, taxis, and private hire vehicles that do not meet prescribed national
standards for NO2 emissions.

Members sought to understand the reason behind the introduction of a GM wide Clean
Air Zone. The committee was advised that NO2 emissions had been dangerously high
across all 10 GM local authorities hence the introduction of a GM wide Clean Air Zone.

Concerns were raised around the issues faced by business to retrofit/upgrade their
vehicles. It was reported that a £120m compensation scheme had been agreed between
GM and the government to support the transition to cleaner vehicles. However, due to
supply chain issues and inflation there were fundamental concerns that global and
national factors would impact the ability of local businesses and individuals to upgrade
their vehicles and it would be likely that the funding allotted to support the transition
would be insufficient. Members were advised that further discussions had been planned
with leaders to agree a way forward.

A member sought to understand the reason for private cars to be exempted from
payment for entering the Clean Air Zone. It was reported that the current GM Clean Air
Plan had been prepared with Government to achieve legal NO2 limit values in the
shortest possible time and therefore had been targeted at the most polluting vehicles.

Concerning the Strategic Road Network (SRN), sections of the A628/A57 in Tameside,
it was reported that further discussions were underway to establish the most appropriate
solution for the charging mechanism to be applied.

It was acknowledged that the purpose of the scheme was solely to reduce air pollution
and therefore it was suggested that the income from the scheme be reinvested into the
hardship fund. However, it was noted that this was a decision for the 10 local authorities
to consider.

RESOLVED/That the update be noted.

Page 6

HP&E 21/31

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declaration of interests were received.

HP&E 21/32

THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 09 DECEMBER 2021

The minutes of the previous meeting, held on 09 December 2021 were submitted for
approval.

RESOLVED/That the minutes of the Housing, Planning & Environment Overview & Scrutiny
Committee held on 09 December 2021 be approved.

HP&E 21/33

GM RETROFIT ACTION PLAN 2021 - 2024

Consideration was given to a report that sought members approval on the GM Retrofit
Action Plan, that had been commissioned by the Mayoral Retrofit Task Force. The
discussion was further supplemented with a presentation that provided an overview of
plans to deliver on the 2038 carbon neutral target.

The Mayoral Retrofit Task Force had highlighted the following three notable challenges
to meet the targeted average of 61,000 homes retrofitted per year:


Insufficient skilled operatives required to retrofit homes, public buildings, and
businesses



Lack of innovative funding models and solutions to support GM residents that were
willing to complete retrofit measures to their homes



A local, quality assured offer which would both inform and demystify retrofit

The following comments were made:

Concerns were raised regarding the restrictions around the scope of delivery of various
government schemes and the lack of capacity in the supply chain to meet customer
demand. Members were advised that work was underway to identify/develop suitable

Page 7

schemes for willing payers to finance the retrofit activity for their own homes. It was
highlighted that not all homes would be needed to be retrofitted and that homeowners
would also have the option of installing an Air Source Heat Pump into suitable
properties. The Government’s £5,000 Boiler Upgrade Scheme grants would, from April
2022, support this market to develop and would also attract individuals who are willing
to pay for such technology.

It was acknowledged that retrofit generally does not require new trades, it was noted
that it would create an opportunity to upskill and retrain existing tradespeople within the
construction sector to meet the expected demand. As part of developing the workforce,
further work had been planned by promoting retrofitting jobs and by working with higher
education facilities to deliver more relevant training and qualifications.

Members highlighted that several residents in GM were living in fuel poverty and
therefore sought to understand what had been planned to address this issue. It was
reported that through the Green Homes Grant work was underway to support residents
to renovate fuel-poor homes. Further plans were underway to reduce energy demand
by improving the fabric of the home with the view to offer substantial economic benefits
to the people living there.

Concerns were raised around the lack of low carbon options available through boiler
suppliers and the damaging impact this would have on the market for future demand. It
was acknowledged that there was a need to develop a strong pipeline of suppliers and
to create awareness on the type of technology available to homeowners.

Further concerns were raised around the cost of retrofitting including the installation of
Air Source Heat Pumps. It was highlighted that the recently announced Boiler Upgrade
Scheme would likely incentivise residents to take up on the low carbon offer as the
scheme offered a one-off £5,000 grant for eligible homeowners. It was also noted that
launch of the scheme would drive awareness resulting in an increase in market demand
which would likely drive down costs.

Page 8

It was noted that the scale of the environmental challenge meant action was needed
across all buildings in GM and that there was a need to sequence interventions and
target sectors/individuals who have already recognised the urgency of retrofitting. Doing
this would create the necessary demand to stimulate the provision of skills and would
enable financial products and services. Members were advised that all new GM homes
would be designed to be net zero carbon to achieve the 2038 Carbon Neutral target.

RESOLVED/1. That the GM Retrofit Action Plan and its contents be noted.
2. That GM Retrofit Action Plan included under Annex 1, be agreed.
HP&E 21/34

PLACES FOR EVERYONE UPDATE

Consideration was given to a presentation that provided an update following the close
of the consultation on the Places for Everyone Publication Plan.

The following comments were made:

Members were advised that work was underway to evaluate the responses received
and to identify any new emerging issues. Following which the next step would be to
submit the plan to the Secretary of State who would appoint a panel of inspectors to
carry out an independent examination to decide whether the plan was sound and
accordingly make any recommendation to the 9 districts.

As responses to the online consultation were lower as compared to previous years, a
member sought to understand whether this would affect the validity of the plan.
Members were advised that all legal requirements as set out in the revised legislation
to carry out online consultations had been met and therefore did not affect the validity
of the plan. Additionally, further work had been done with community groups to capture
any comments from residents who were unable to respond to the online consultation.

Page 9

RESOLVED/That the update on the progress of Places for Everyone Publication Plan 2021 be
noted.

HP&E 21/35

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS

Consideration was given to a report that provided an overview of the latest Forward
Plan of Key Decisions (Appendix A) to identify areas of focus for the committee.

RESOLVED/That the latest Forward Plan of Key Decisions be noted.
HP&E 21/36

WORK PROGRAMME 2021/2022

Consideration was a report that provided a summary of the items that would be
considered by the Committee during the 2021-2022 municipal year.

RESOLVED/That the Work Programme be noted.
HP&E 21/28


DATE OF NEXT MEETING

1 February 2022; 10:30 am

Page 10

Agenda Item 5

GM Housing, Planning and Environment
Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Date:

01 February 2022

Subject:

Forward Plan of Key Decisions

Report of:

Joanne Heron, Statutory Scrutiny Officer, GMCA

PURPOSE OF REPORT:
To provide the Committee with the latest Forward Plan of Key Decisions (Appendix A) to
identify areas of focus.

RECOMMENDATION:
The Committee is asked to identify areas of focus for consideration at future meetings.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Joanne Heron, Statutory Scrutiny Officer, GMCA
joanne.heron@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A
REGISTER OF KEY DECISIONS: 1 JANUARY 2022 TO 30 APRIL 2022
December 2021
What is a Register of Key Decisions?

What is a Key Decision?

The Register is a published list of the key decisions
which are due to be taken by the:
Greater Manchester Combined Authority
(GMCA)
Greater Manchester Elected Mayor
Joint GMCA & AGMA Executive Board
Transport for Greater Manchester
Committee;
GMCA Resources Committee;
GMCA’s Waste & Recycling Committee;
Key decisions delegated to officers

A key decision defined by ‘the Order’ is a
decision which, in the view of the Greater
Manchester Combined Authority’s Overview
and Scrutiny Committee, would result in any of
the decision makers listed:

Page 13

These decisions must be published on the Register
at least 28 clear days before the decision is to
be taken, whether in public or private. The Register
is updated at least once a month.
This Register of Key Decisions has been prepared
in accordance with Combined Authorities (Overview
and Scrutiny Committees, Access to Information
and Audit Committees) Order 2017 (‘the Order’).
The Register is published on the GMCA’s website
www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk and hard copies
are available at the offices of:
Greater Manchester Combined Authority
& Greater Manchester Mayor
Churchgate House
Oxford Street
Manchester M1 6EU

(i)

(ii)

incurring expenditure over £500,000, or
making significant savings of £500,000
or more relating to the budget for the
service area to which the decision
relates; or
be significant in terms of its effects on
persons living or working in an area of
more two or more wards or electoral
divisions of Greater Manchester.

The GMCA’s has three thematic Scrutiny
Committees:
Corporate Issues and Reform
Economy, Business Growth and Skills
Housing, Planning and Environment
These Committees’ role is to contribute to the
development of GMCA’s strategies and
policies, to scrutinise decisions of the decisionmakers listed above and to consider any matter
affecting those who live, work, study or run
businesses in Greater Manchester.

1

Published on 22nd

How to find out more on these proposed
decisions
The report (other than those which contain
confidential or exempt information) relating to
these decisions will published on the GMCA’s
website five working days before the decision
is to be made see www.greatermanchesterca.gov.uk.
For general information about the decisionmaking process please contact:

GMCA Assistant Director Governance,
Scrutiny & Business Support
Julie Connor
julie.connor@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk

Decision title

Decision
Maker

Planned
Decision
Dates

What is the decision?

Documents to be
considered

Devolved Adult
Education Budget 2022/2023
Academic Year

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

25 Mar 2022

To approve the
recommended indicative
allocations to skills
providers for the
2022/2023 academic year,
for Local Authorities; FE
College and procured skills
providers.

Report with
Recommendations

Page 14
Devolved Adult
Education Budget National Skills Fund
Level 3 Adult Offer 2022/2023
Academic Year

Agreement that final
allocations are approved
under delegated authority
to the GMCA Treasurer &
GMCA Director –
Education, Skills & Work
(Policy, Strategy &
Delivery) in consultation
with the Leader & Chief
Executive Portfolio Leads
for Skills, Work & Digital.
Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

25 Mar 2022

To approve the
recommended indicative
allocations to skills
providers for the
2022/2023 academic year,

2

Report with
Recommendations

Officer Contact

Subject / Decision

Decision
Maker

Planned
Decision
Dates

What is the decision?

Documents to be
considered

Officer Contact

Report with
Recommendations

David Taylor
david.taylor@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk

Report with
Recommendations

Steve Warrener steve.warrener@tfgm.com

for Local Authorities; FE
College and procured skills
providers.

Page 15

Agreement that final
allocations are approved
under delegated authority
to the GMCA Treasurer &
GMCA Director –
Education, Skills & Work
(Policy, Strategy &
Delivery) in consultation
with the Leader & Chief
Executive Portfolio Leads
for Skills, Work & Digital

Lifecycle
replacement of rail
wagons

Greater
Manchester
Waste &
Recycling
Committee

January 2022

ZEBRA submission

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

28 Jan 2022

To include provision in the
capital programme for
replacement of 10 rail
wagons for waste transport
each year from 2022 to 2026

Approve the submission of
a full business case bid for
the DfT for the ZEBRA
fund

3

Subject / Decision

Decision
Maker

Planned
Decision
Dates

What is the decision?

Documents to be
considered

Officer Contact

Report with
Recommendations

Mark Atherton
mark.atherton@greatermanchesterca.gov.uk

Approve the proposed
allocation of £11.2m local
funding contribution
Agree the final allocations
are approved under
delegated authority of GMCA
Treasurer and Chief
Executive.

Page 16
RetrofitGM Delivery
vehicle for
domestic/SME
buildings retrofit

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

28 Jan 2022

The approval to proceed
with the procurement of
the retrofitGM Delivery
vehicle via an
established NW based
dynamic purchasing
Framework

The contract value
subject to the decision is
£200,000

4

Decision
Maker

Planned
Decision
Dates

What is the decision?

Documents to be
considered

Officer Contact

Approval of the GM
Night Time Economy
Adviser's Night Time
Economy Blueprint

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 1 Jan
2022 and 31
Mar 2022

Approval of the night time
economy blueprint

Report with
recommendations

Alison Gordon
alison.gordon@greatermanchesterca.gov.uk

GM One Network

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

11 Feb 2022

To agree and award the
contract for GM One
Network design, build and
operate.

Report with
Recommendations

Phil Swan Phil.Swan@greatermanchesterca.gov.uk

Greater Manchester
Information Strategy

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

17 Dec 2021

Draft Greater
Manchester
Information
Strategy

Andrew Lightfoot
andrew.lightfoot@greatermanchesterca.gov.uk

Page 17

Subject / Decision

To approve the draft Greater
Manchester Information
Strategy
GMP Site, Chester
Road Trafford.

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 26
Nov 2021 and
17 Dec 2021

To seek approval to
establish a joint venture
between GMCA, Trafford
Council and a
Development Partner and
related activity to enable
the redevelopment of the
Chester House site, Old
Trafford.

5

Andrew McIntosh
andrew.mcintosh@greatermanchesterca.gov.uk

Decision
Maker

Planned
Decision
Dates

What is the decision?

Documents to be
considered

Officer Contact

Greater Manchester
Retrofit Action Plan

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

26 Nov 2021

Approve the Greater
Manchester Retrofit Action
Plan

Report with
Recommendations

Mark Atherton
mark.atherton@greatermanchesterca.gov.uk

Clean Air Plan
(CAP) Taxi

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

29 Oct 2021

To grant Capital Programme
Entry and grant approval to
release funding in line with
the business case and
delivery plans submitted to
JAQU.

Report with
Recommendations

Simon Warburton
simon.warburton@tfgm.com

Large Scale Foam
Making Equipment
(Firefighting)

Treasurer
GMCA

Between 1 Oct
2021 and 30
Nov 2021

Approval to award
successful bidders a place
on a Framework for use by
North West FRS’s which
will also be available for
National FRS’s to utilise.

Contract Award
Report

Leon Parkes
parkesl@manchesterfire.gov.uk

Greater Manchester
Working Well
Working Health
Programme: JETS
((formally WW Lite) Contract Extension

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

24 Sep 2021

To approve a variation to
the Working Well Health
Programme Contract.

Report with
Recommendations

Mat Ainsworth
Matthew.Ainsworth@greatermanchesterca.gov.uk;

Page 18

Subject / Decision

To utilise additional
funding allocated made
available by HMT/DWP
for the WW HP JETS
initially introduced in
October 2020 for one year
and one year possible
extension
GMCA now wish to extend
the existing service offer to

6

Subject / Decision

Decision
Maker

Planned
Decision
Dates

What is the decision?

Documents to be
considered

Officer Contact

continue to support people
impacted by
unemployment due to the
impact of CV19 and the
move into employment
Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

24 Sep 2021

To grant Capital Programme
Entry and grant approval to
release funding in line with
the business case and
delivery plans submitted to
JAQU.

Report with
Recommendations

Simon Warburton
simon.warburton@tfgm.com

Rapid Transit
Strategy

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 1 Sep
2021 and 31
Dec 2021

Approval of the GM Rapid
Transit Strategy

Report with
Recommendations

Simon Warburton
simon.warburton@tfgm.com

Greater Manchester
Resource and
Waste Strategy Outline Proposals

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 1 Sep
2021 and 31
Dec 2021

To agree outline proposals
and to commence public
consultation

Report with
Recommendations

David Taylor
david.taylor@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk

Intra-city Transport
Settlement grant

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

September
2021

Approve the addition of
£8.6m to the 2021/22
Transport revenue budget
for the Intra-City Transport
Settlement grant from
Department for Transport

Report with
Recommendations

Steve Wilson
Steve.Wilson@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk

Appointment of
biowaste treatment

Greater
Manchester

Between 23 Jul
2021 and 30

To appoint biowaste
treatment contractors to

Report with
Recommendations

Page 19

Clean Bus Fund
(CBF) Replacement

7

Decision
Maker

Planned
Decision
Dates

What is the decision?

contractors 20222026

Combined
Authority

Sep 2021

manage 15 ‘tonnage
packages’ (lots) of
biowaste collected from
households across Greater
Manchester from 2022 to
2026

Revenue and capital
budget updates

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 1 Jul
2021 and 28
Feb 2022

Salford Bolton
Network
Improvements Bolton Delivery
Package 5 Phase 4
Bradshawgate

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

National Skills Fund:
Construction/Retrofit
Skills Bootcamp

Local Growth Deal (
1, 2 and 3) six
monthly progress
update

Page 20

Subject / Decision

Documents to be
considered

Officer Contact

Approve revisions to
revenue budget and capital
programme

Report with
Recommendations

Steve Wilson
Steve.Wilson@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk

Between 1 Jul
2021 and 31
Oct 2021

Funding Approval

Report with
Recommendations

Steve Warrener steve.warrener@tfgm.com

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 1 Jul
2021 and 30
Sep 2021

Award of contract to a
provider to deliver a
construction/retrofit skills
bootcamp. Which will
support 200-250
unemployed GM residents to
enter the construction
industry and gain the skills to
work on retrofit projects.

Report with
Recommendations

Steve Wilson
Steve.Wilson@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 1 Jul
2021 and 30
Apr 2022

To grant Full or Conditional
Approval and/or release
funding / approve
expenditure and

Report with
Recommendations

Steve Warrener steve.warrener@tfgm.com

8

Subject / Decision

Decision
Maker

Planned
Decision
Dates

What is the decision?

Documents to be
considered

Officer Contact

allocate/reallocate funding
across the programme for
schemes within the Growth
Deal 1,2,3 and/or the
Transforming Cities Fund.
Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 1 Jun
2021 and 31
Aug 2021

To agree approach to
providing development
support to districts

Report with
recommendations

Andrew McIntosh
andrew.mcintosh@greatermanchesterca.gov.uk

Land Acquisition

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 1 Jun
2021 and 31 Jul
2021

Approval to acquire a site
and the cost of acquisition be
included into the Capital
Programme

Report with
Recommendations

Steve Warrener steve.warrener@tfgm.com

Clean Funds
Scheme (CFS)

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 1 Jun
2021 and 31
Aug 2021

To grant Capital Programme
Entry and grant approval to
release funding in line with
the business case and
delivery plans submitted to
JAQU.

Report with
Recommendations

Simon Warburton
simon.warburton@tfgm.com

GM Active Travel
Fund Governance
Update

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 1
May 2021 and
31 Jul 2021

To approve the proposed
governance and scheme of
delegation for the GM Active
Travel Fund

Report with
recommendations

Simon Warburton
simon.warburton@tfgm.com

Forthcoming
Changes to the Bus
Network in Greater
Manchester

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 1
May 2021 and
31 Jul 2021

To approve forthcoming
changes to subsidised bus
services.

Report with
Recommendations

Stephen Rhodes stephen.rhodes@tfgm.com

Page 21

Development
Support to Districts

9

Decision
Maker

Planned
Decision
Dates

What is the decision?

Documents to be
considered

Officer Contact

Transforming Cities
Fund 2 - Challenge
Fund Approval and
Funding

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 1
May 2021 and
31 Jul 2021

To grant Programme Entry,
Full or Conditional Approval
and/or release funding for
cycling and walking schemes
within the Transforming
Cities Fund – Challenge Fund.

Report with
Recommendations

Steve Warrener steve.warrener@tfgm.com

GM Infrastructure
Programme

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 1
May 2021 and
31 Dec 2021

Decision to utilise retained
business rates to fund work
in relation to a GM
Infrastructure Programme.

Report with
Recommendations

Andrew McIntosh
andrew.mcintosh@greatermanchesterca.gov.uk

GM Business
Growth Hub

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 1
May 2021 and
31 Jul 2021

To agree GMCA funding

Report with
Recommendations

Steve Wilson
Steve.Wilson@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk

GMCA Gas supply
contract

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 1
May 2021 and
31 Jul 2021

Agree to the procurement of
a gas supply contract via a
Yorkshire Purchasing
Organisation (YPO)
framework with a contract
duration of 4 years

Report with
Recommendations

Steve Wilson
Steve.Wilson@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk

Clean Air Funding
Plan

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 1
May 2021 and
31 Jul 2021

To grant approval to release
funding for all GM Clean Air
Plan measures in line with
the business case and
delivery plans submitted to
JAQU and approved by the
GM Authorities.

Report with
Recommendations

Simon Warburton
simon.warburton@tfgm.com

Page 22

Subject / Decision

10

Decision
Maker

Planned
Decision
Dates

What is the decision?

Documents to be
considered

Officer Contact

Receipt and Award
of HE Revenue
Funding to Great
Places Housing
Group

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 1
May 2021 and
30 Sep 2021

To award revenue grant
funding from HE to Great
Places Housing Group to
progress the next stage of
MMC investigations and the
Business Case.

Report with
Recommendations

Andrew McIntosh
andrew.mcintosh@greatermanchesterca.gov.uk

Greater Manchester
Business Funds

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 1 Apr
2021 and 31
Dec 2021

To conditionally approve
business investments to
proceed to due diligence
and/or note commercial
changes to existing
investments, including where
relevant negotiated
settlements.

Report with
Recommendations

Kirsteen Armitage
kirsteen.armitage@greatermanchestreca.gov.uk

Greater Manchester
Housing Funds

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 1 Apr
2021 and 31
Dec 2021

To conditionally approve
housing investments to
proceed to due diligence
and/or note commercial
changes to existing
investments

Report with
Recommendations

Andrew McIntosh
andrew.mcintosh@greatermanchesterca.gov.uk

Greater Manchester
Property Funds

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 1 Apr
2021 and 31
Dec 2021

To conditionally approve
property investments to
proceed to due diligence
and/or note commercial
changes to existing
investments.

Report with
Recommendations

Kirsteen Armitage
kirsteen.armitage@greatermanchestreca.gov.uk

ESF Skills for
Growth
Commissioning

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 1 Apr
2021 and 31
Mar 2022

To proceed with the
procurement and contracting
of providers and activity
relating to the GM Skills for

Report with
Recommendations

Gemma Marsh
gemma.marsh@greatermanchesterca.gov.uk

Page 23

Subject / Decision

11

Subject / Decision

Decision
Maker

Planned
Decision
Dates

What is the decision?

Documents to be
considered

Officer Contact

Report with
Recommendations

Carolyn Wilkins
carolyn.wilkins@oldham.gov.uk

Growth programme.
Next Steps for a
Tobacco Licensing
System and
Extending Smoke
Free Spaces in
Greater Manchester

Greater
Manchester
Combined
Authority

Between 1 Mar
2021 and 31
Dec 2021

To agree the process to take
forward a tobacco licensing
system and extend smoke
free spaces in Greater
Manchester in line with the
Making Smoking History
Strategy, including funding.

Page 24
12

Agenda Item 6

GM Housing, Planning and Environment
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date:

01 February 2022

Subject:

Work Programme

Report of:

Joanne Heron, Statutory Scrutiny Officer, GMCA

PURPOSE OF REPORT:
The attached document (Appendix A) sets out the Housing, Planning and Environment
Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s work programme for Members to develop, review, and
agree.

This is a live document and will be reviewed and updated at each meeting to ensure that
the Committee’s work programme remains current.
The Committee also receives the GMCA’s register of key decisions whenever it is updated
and the GMCA’s monthly decision notice.

RECOMMENDATION:
The Committee is asked to develop, review, and agree it’s work programme.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Joanne Heron, Statutory Scrutiny Officer, GMCA
joanne.heron@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk

Page 25

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A

WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22
HOUSING, PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

The table below sets out the Committee’s work programme for this municipal year. Members
are invited to further develop, review, and agree topics which they would like to consider. Items
considered last year are appended at the back of this report. The work programme will be
reviewed and if necessary updated following each meeting to ensure that the Committee’s work
programme remains current.
In addition, the Committee will receive the GMCA’s register of key decisions and the GMCA’s
monthly decision notice.

Date of Meeting

Tuesday 8 March
2022

Item

Responsible Officer



Mayoral Update

Andy Burnham



Biodiversity – Local Nature
Recovery Strategy

Sam Evans



Flood risk management Update

David Hodcroft



MOU with The Environment
Agency and United Utilities
Update

David Hodcroft

*Mayor scheduled to attend

Page 27

Page 28

Agenda Item 7

GM Housing, Planning and Environment
Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Date:

01 February 2022

Subject:

Potential Implications of National Resources and Waste Strategy

Report of:

Councillor Allison Gwynne, Chair of the GMCA Waste and Recycling
Committee

PURPOSE OF REPORT:
The report provides Members of the Committee with an update on the development of the
Resources and Waste Strategy and the potential implications for waste management in
Greater Manchester.

RECOMMENDATION:
The Committee is recommended to:

1. Note the report and to request further updates as Government releases the next
consultation responses and guidance.

CONTACT OFFICER:
David Taylor, Executive Director – Waste and Resources
david.taylor@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk

Page 29

BACKGROUND PAPERS:
The following is a list of the background papers on which this report is based in accordance
with the requirements of Section 100D (1) of the Local Government Act 1972. It does not
include documents, which would disclose exempt or confidential information as identified by
that Act.

Overview of Our Waste, Our Resources: A Strategy for England. Waste and Recycling
Committee 24th January 2019

Resources and Waste Strategy: Consultations. Waste and Recycling Committee 14th
March 2019
Resources and Waste Strategy Update. Waste and Recycling Committee 22 nd July 2020
England’s Resources and Waste Strategy Update. Waste and Recycling Committee 14th
October 2020
National Waste and Resources Strategy – Implications for Greater Manchester. Housing,
Planning and Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee 14th January 2021
England’s Resources and Waste Strategy Update. Waste and Recycling Committee 21st
April 2021

Resources and Waste Strategy for England Consultations. Waste and Recycling
Committee 13th July 2020

1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1

In December 2018 the Government published its national Resources and Waste
Strategy (RaWS) setting out “…how we will preserve material resources by

Page 30

minimising waste, promoting resource efficiency, and moving towards a circular
economy in England.”

1.2

1.3

The RaWS has two overarching objectives:
(i)

To maximise the value of resource use; and

(ii)

To minimise waste and its impact on the environment.

The RaWS will be delivered through policies, actions and commitments which adhere
to at least one of five strategic principles:

(i)

To provide the incentives, through regulatory or economic instruments
if necessary and appropriate, and ensure the infrastructure, information
and skills are in place, for people to do the right thing;

(ii)

To prevent waste from occurring in the first place, and manage it better
when it does;

(iii)

To ensure that those who place on the market products which become
waste to take greater responsibility for the costs of disposal – the
‘polluter pays’ principle;

1.4

(iv)

To lead by example, both domestically and internationally; and

(v)

To not allow our ambition to be undermined by criminality.

Two rounds of consultation on the proposals have been completed – the most recent
covering:

(i)

Proposals for the introduction of a plastic packaging tax to encourage
greater use of recycled plastic as a raw material;

(ii)

Reforming the packaging producer responsibility regulations in the UK;

(iii)

Introducing a deposit return scheme for drinks containers in England,
Northern Ireland and Wales; and

(iv)

Measures to accelerate consistency in recycling for both households
and businesses in England.

1.5

These consultations closed in June and July 2021 with the GMCA providing a
response on behalf of the nine authorities covered by the Waste Disposal Authority

Page 31

(Wigan is a unitary authority and makes its own arrangements for waste disposal).
The responses were approved by the Waste and Recycling Committee.

1.6

In preparation for the consultations and to inform for the development of waste
collection and disposal services, the GMCA commissioned an implications
assessment

to

understand

the

financial,

infrastructural

and

contractual

consequences of the Government’s preferred model of waste collection. This report
focusses on the proposals contained within the consultation on the measures to
accelerate consistency in recycling for both households and businesses, their
potential cost to Greater Manchester, their impacts across various aspects of service
delivery and what might be done to ensure changes fit with Greater Manchester’s
particular circumstances.

2.0

THE GOVERNMENT’S PREFERRED METHOD OF HOUSEHOLD
WASTE COLLECTION

2.1

It has been widely publicised that the Government’s preferred approach to the
collection of household waste is to segregate and collect separately seven materials
for recycling and to specify a core set of materials within the dry recycling stream that
must be collected, these being:

a)

Mixed paper and card;

b)

Plastics (including pots, tubs and trays (PTTs) and later, plastic ‘films’
and ‘flexible packaging);

c)

Cartons (to be mixed with plastics stream);

d)

Metal packaging (aluminum and steel cans), aerosol cans and foil/foil
trays;

2.2

e)

Glass bottles and jars;

f)

Food waste;

g)

Garden waste (free at the point of collection); and

h)

Non-recyclable waste at a maximum fortnightly frequency.

The reasons provided for the separate collection of the materials are that Government
believes it will increase the quality of the recycling collected, promote consistency of
collections across England and increase the quantity of recyclable materials
collected. Clearly, providing seven separate collection containers at each home

Page 32

(including flats) will be a challenge irrespective of the type of property and has raised
concerns nationally. This would mean investment in new and additional collection
vehicles designed for the kerbside sort collection method, additional crews being
required and additional depots and maintenance areas being required to
accommodate the expanded fleets. In a step that does potentially reduce the number
of containers (to six) the Government sought views on the possible mixing of metals
and plastics or glass and metals.

2.3

It should be added that Defra provided an update on its thoughts on the
implementation of consistency in waste collection at a waste management sector
conference in November 2021. In brief these were:


The collection of dry recyclables mixed in certain combinations will be
permissible under the Environment Act using an exemption and/or based
on a specific cost/benefit analysis known as a TEEP assessment
justification (see section 3.0 for further details on TEEP);



Collection of garden waste and food waste together (as now in GM) will
be permissible under the Environment Act using an exemption; and



Collection of food waste on a weekly basis (including if co-collected with
garden waste) is a legal requirement under the Environment Act and any
deviation cannot be justified under an exemption or via a TEEP
assessment.

2.4

This may permit the continuation of our current dry recycling collection service but
force a move to weekly food/mixed organic waste collection. It cannot be taken for
granted that this update will be the final position but perhaps demonstrates there is
likely to be some flexibility in some aspects of the final ‘choices’ for consistent
collections. Much of the detail outlined in this report reflects the Government position
contained within summer 2021 consultation documents as the most recent written
position. Responses to these consultations and further information on the
implementation of the RaWS is anticipated to be released in Spring 2022.

2.5

There is a collection method that can accommodate the separated materials
(excluding garden waste and non-recyclable waste) on a single vehicle. It is referred
to as the kerbside sort methodology and utilises a number of boxes for the materials
which are then emptied into compartments on a ‘resource recovery vehicle’ (RRV).

Page 33

This is very much a manual process reliant on lifting and tipping of boxes and
potentially the hand sorting of any mixed streams and removal of contaminant. RRVbased services have a lower productivity rate and lower capacity – therefore
significantly more vehicles and crews would be needed to collect Greater
Manchester’s recyclable waste. However, RRVs are more fuel efficient compared to
the traditional compacting refuse collection vehicle and have a lower purchase price.

2.7

As mentioned above, the GMCA commissioned an analysis of the impacts of the
RaWS proposals. The following table compares the financial 1, infrastructural,
environmental and contractual impacts of replacing our current collection system with
the Government’s preferred waste collection methodology.

Service
description

Current Services

Kerbside Sort Service

Four bin system
Separate collection for each
numbered waste stream (i.e.,
four
containers)
using
compacting refuse collection
vehicles (RCVs)

Six container system
Streams (i) to (iv) below collected
weekly on the RRV, streams, (v)
and (vi) separately collected.
This would effectively require an
RRV fleet alongside an RCV
fleet.
(i) mixed food & garden waste (i) food waste
(ii) mixed paper, card & cartons (ii) mixed paper & card
(iii) plastic bottles, glass & metal (iii) plastics & cartons
cans
(iv) glass and metals
(iv) non-recyclable waste
(v) garden waste
(vi) non-recyclable waste

1

The modelling used cost and performance information provided by each WCA and does not include all costs
associated with service provision (for example staffing costs only include frontline staff and immediate supervision). In
developing the comparator modelling agreed assumptions were applied on parameters. The results presented here
are high level.

Page 34

Modelled revenue costs (rounded) per annum opex
Service
description
Collection

Disposal

Current Services

Kerbside Sort Service

£51.8m

£68.0m reflecting the increased
number of vehicles for the
recycling service
£36.0m reflecting the lower cost
of treating separate food and
garden waste2

£45.5m

Infrastructure impact
Service
description
Collection

Current Services

Kerbside Sort Service

N/A – as current services









Disposal

N/A – as current services









2

Complete change of
collection fleet – significant
increase in vehicle numbers
(from 258 to 352)
Many WCA depots could not
accommodate the expanded
fleet and workforce requiring
new sites to be developed
Complete change of
recycling receptacles
Slower vehicle emptying
H&S concerns over the
return to boxes (e.g. manual
handling, lacerations, noise)
Would require re-configuring
of all waste reception
facilities to accept
segregated streams (e.g.
construction of new bays)
Change of vehicle types for
the handling of waste at
transfer loading stations (e.g.
to forklift trucks)
Some potential redundancy
of the MRF used to sort
mixed recyclables
Increased turnaround times
on site due to increased
vehicle numbers
Potential development of our
own biowaste treatment
infrastructure such as
anaerobic digestion for food
waste

This has been calculated using an estimated gate fee for the treatment of the two streams at merchant facilities.

Page 35

Environment – CO2 equivalent emissions annually
Service
description

Current Services

Kerbside Sort Service

Collection
and 74kt
transport (pa)

71kt

Materials
2,390kt
processing and
disposal (pa)

2,348kt

Contractual and procurement
Service
description

Current Services

Collection

N/A – as current services

Disposal

N/A – as current services

Modelled recycling 51.3%
performance

Page 36

Kerbside Sort Service


Transition to the new service
would take several years as
current districts fleet
replacement programmes
are generally staggered
 May require costly in-term
change for the two
outsourced authorities
 Procuring vehicles and
containers will be challenging
as demand will be very high
from many other councils
 Uncertainty over capacity of
market to accommodate
increased and changed
material flows
 Changes would require new
and potentially separate
contracts for the treatment of
food waste and garden
waste or construction of
biowaste treatment capacity
by the GMCA
 Unless services changed at
natural contract end would
require significant contract
change (with costs
associated)
1
52.4%

3.0

HOW MIGHT THE RAWS REQUIREMENTS BE DELIVERED
ACROSS GREATER MANCHESTER?

3.1

The Government’s preference may be for the separate collection of materials, but it
is recognised that up to six containers may not be possible for every area. Therefore,
a mechanism by which waste collection authorities can undertake a technical,
economic, and environmental practicability assessment (known as a TEEP
assessment) to justify the selection of a system that deviates from the preferred option
is being developed.

3.2

At this stage the Government has not specified the format of this assessment (and it
will be subject to further consultation in 2022), however it has provided an indication
of the kinds of constraints that may contribute towards a deviation – these include:


Technical practicability – the impact of housing stock (e.g. flats, multi
occupancy dwellings, student accommodation), rurality, availability of
suitable containers, storage of containers at properties, and storage in
existing waste infrastructure;



Economic practicability - local authorities will need to demonstrate that their
specific financial costs (caused by their local circumstances) makes it
significantly more expensive to have separate collections based on (e.g.)
housing stock, rurality, and availability of recycling and treatment
infrastructure; and



Environmental practicability - local authorities will need to make the case
that separate collection is of no significant environmental benefit based on,
for example greenhouse gas emissions, reject tonnages, lifts per vehicle
and journey length.

3.3

Greater Manchester’s ‘choice’ of waste collection model will be very strongly driven
by its housing stock. The conurbation has a very high proportion of high-density street
level properties where multiples of containers (up to seven) are very unlikely to be
able to be accommodated without impinging on daily life in and around the home and
on the street. Where pockets of properties might be able to accommodate the
Government’s preferred waste collection option it would be uneconomic and
impractical to operate a different collection method from the majority.

Page 37

3.4

Although we are yet to see the full TEEP assessment requirements, based on the
examples of what may inform the selection of a deviation from the preferred option, it
is believed a strong case can be argued for the retention of much of our current core
waste system (i.e. the four bin system) because:


It is consistent across GM and proven to work across the varied street level
housing stock of Greater Manchester;



Generates generally good quality materials;



Is straightforward to understand and communicate;



Keeps key materials apart (e.g., paper and glass);



Gives each waste collection authority some flexibility on collection
frequencies and container sizes to suit their own circumstances;



Enables the use of vehicle fleets that can cover the collection of any of the
streams without the need for specialist vehicles;



Is designed to dovetail with a comprehensive and long-term treatment and
disposal infrastructure; and



There is no significant environmental benefit (based no CO 2-equivalent
emissions) of changing to a kerbside sort RRV based system.

3.5

There are some changes/additions we may have to make and these will have financial
and service implications:

a. Food waste collection - the Environment Act mandates the separate
collection of food waste on a weekly basis. The November 21 Defra
update indicates that mixed food and garden waste collections may be
permissible under an exemption but this is yet to be confirmed;
b. Currently we collect a mixed organics stream (food waste with garden
waste) and the frequency varies from authority-to-authority and on time
of year. This waste stream is treated via in-vessel composting (IVC)
utilising contracted capacity (until 2026) at a number of merchant
facilities. The quality standards for the material accepted are tightening
and we expect costs to increase as a result regardless of the option we
select;

Page 38

c. Clearly the mandating of separate weekly food waste provides the GMCA
with a number of challenges and a range of potential options:
1. Continue with our current collection and treatment assuming that an
exemption from the mandatory separate collection of food can be
applied. The potential penalties for not complying with the
Environment Act are as yet unclear;
2. Continue to collect as a mixed organic fraction and utilise ‘dry’
anaerobic digestion (AD) to treat all the collected material;
3. Continue to collect as a mixed organic fraction and utilise emerging
treatment technology that compresses the waste allowing a slurry
to be treated via ‘wet’ AD and the dry fraction treated via IVC; or
4. Separately collect the food waste and treat via wet AD and compost
the garden waste.
d. The following table summarises some of the considerations for each
option:
Option(s)
Vehicles
1 – as now, No change
contrary to
legal
obligation in
Environment
Act

Carbon
No change –
the lowest
carbon
benefit of the
four options

Infrastructure
Post 2026 we
will need either
new merchant
contracts or
build new
facilities.
Construction of
own facilities
provides
certainty

2 – dry AD

No change

Better carbon
performance
than option 1
as gas can
be recovered
from the
treated
biowaste but
not as good
as option 4.
Better than
option 3.

Post 2026 we
will need to
build new
facilities as
there is no
merchant
capacity
currently.

Financials3
No change on collection.
New contracts may see
a small increase in costs
if capacity is available.
Construction of own
facilities could be
depreciated over 25
years resulting in a per
tonne gate fee roughly
equal to now.
No change on collection.
Construction of own
facilities could be
depreciated over 25
years resulting in a per
tonne gate fee roughly
equal to now.

Construction of
own facilities

3

To accommodate the GMCA’s biowaste over 200ktpa of capacity would be required. If separate, food waste
accounts for around 25-40% of this total.

Page 39

3 – new
technology

No change

4–
separately
collect

Increase in
fleet to
accommodate
the weekly
collection of
food waste
(options range
from 99 -250
additional
vehicles
across the
GMCA)

provides
certainty
Better carbon Post 2026 we
performance will need to
as gas can
build new
be recovered facilities as
from the
there are no
treated
facilities of this
biowaste. Not type operating
as good as
– technology
option 2.
risk.

Highest
carbon
benefit of the
four options
as gas
recovery is
maximized
through wet
AD

No change on collection.

Construction of own
facilities if depreciated
over 25 years resulting
in a per tonne gate fee
roughly equal to now but
with a new technology
there may be additional
costs and risk to be
Construction of factored in.
own facilities
provides
certainty
Post 2026 we
Significant increase in
will need to
fleet costs (ability to
build new
accommodate the fleet
facilities as
also a risk with
there are no
insufficient depot
facilities of this space).
type operating
– technology
Wet AD capacity lacking
risk.
in NW but construction
of own facilities provides
Construction of certainty – costs could
own facilities
be depreciated over 25
provides
years. No merchant
certainty
capacity in region so
would require own
investment.

e. In addition to the options above we will also explore the possibilities of
developing regional facilities with neighbouring or near neighbours to
generate economies of scale. There are also opportunities to build in
additional capacity to accommodate commercial food waste inputs as the
RaWS also places obligations on businesses to recycle food waste;

f.

We will be strongly arguing for the retention of the collection of mixed
organics but are likely to have to find a way to deliver a weekly collection;

g. The addition of plastic pots, tubs and trays (PTTs) – across the nine
Greater Manchester districts covered by the WDA, PTTs are not currently
collected due to lack of sustainable markets. Unlike plastic bottles which

Page 40

are mainly made of two types of plastic (HDPE and PET) plastic pots, tubs
and trays are made of a range of different types of plastic of varying quality;

h. All plastics in theory can be recycled but it is not currently technically or
economically viable to recycle PTTs. In Greater Manchester, we only
collect plastic bottles because there is a sustainable market for them, and
we can guarantee they will be recycled.

i.

If PTTs are to be added to collections it could result in an additional 33ktpa
of material sent to our materials recovery facility (MRF). The MRF does
not have capacity for this material and as a result we may need to either
invest in new equipment or capture the material in the reject stream and
send it away for further processing at a third-party facility (but this would
still put strain on the plant). Given the potential additional tonnage (33ktpa)
we may need to develop an additional process plant to accommodate this
material. In the longer term, the RaWS proposes changes to packaging
manufacture to increase the recycled content of plastic packaging and to
reduce the number of plastic polymers used. Both steps will improve the
recyclability of PTTs and stimulate market demand. Delaying collection
until these changes take effect could avoid sunk costs in modifying the
MRF and disposal of collected materials in the interim; and

j.

The addition of ‘soft’ plastics (carrier bags, bread bags, bubble wrap etc.)
– again these plastics are difficult to collect, sort and recycle and including
them in services could add a further 11ktpa to our MRF. Films can cause
problems at MRFs becoming entangled in moving parts resulting in
blockages, downtime, and additional maintenance costs. In our
consultation response we argued for the expansion of collection points at
stores rather than see the materials added to kerbside collections. Again,
if we are mandated to collect at the kerbside, we will need to invest in MRF
infrastructure or alternate treatment options which are now emerging such
as conversion of plastics to fuels.

Page 41

4.0

WILL DEVIATIONS BE PERMITTED?

4.1

The RaWS indicates that the recyclable waste streams must be collected separately
from each other, except where this is not technically or economically practicable, or
where there is no significant environmental benefit from separate collection.

4.2

The Consistency consultation states the “Environment Agency can assess
compliance of Waste Collection Authorities but cannot serve compliance notices on
Waste Collection Authorities. The Environment Agency may audit parties in the waste
chain to assess compliance with legislation and statutory guidance. As part of this,
the Environment Agency would be able to request and audit a proportion of written
assessments.”

4.3

This seems to suggest that WCAs and WDAs (and we would look to draft a single
integrated TEEP assessment for Greater Manchester (excluding Wigan)) draft an
assessment and then deliver their services according to it – it doesn’t need to be
submitted for approval as such, but the EA may select it for audit at a later date.

5.0

HOW WILL CHANGES BE FUNDED?

5.1

As summarised above, changing to a fully RaWS-compliant service could see an
increase in service costs of at least £6.7m per annum across the nine WCAs and the
WDA. In terms of economic practicability this would seem to rule out any suggestion
of changes in the current local government landscape.

5.2

However, the Government has stated that it is committed to supporting the costs of
service changes by providing funding from:


The Government’s New Burdens ‘budget’ which would cover the additional
costs of implementing weekly food waste collections. The Government’s
recently published Net Zero Strategy states:
‘To support our commitment to explore options for the near elimination of
biodegradable municipal waste to landfill from 2028, we are bringing
forward £295 million of capital funding which will allow local authorities in
England to prepare to implement free separate food waste collections for
all households from 2025.’;

Page 42



No further details have been announced and it is noted this is a capital
amount and not ongoing revenue commitment so unclear if this is New
Burdens funding or not. This £295m would need to cover around 340 waste
collection, waste disposal and unitary authorities; and



Providing payments to local authorities for the additional costs from
collection, treatment and disposal of packaging contained within household
waste (including litter). This money is coming from a new Extended
Producer Responsibility” (EPR) regime for packaging.

5.3

The EPR consultation indicates local authorities will receive payments covering the
“necessary costs” for the collection, management and disposal of packaging waste
(whether that packaging is contained within the recycling stream, non-recyclable
waste stream or litter). The EPR consultation proposes that necessary costs include:


Operational costs to collect, manage and dispose of packaging waste
including any investment in capital infrastructure or innovation, where it can
be shown to increase performance and help producers meet Extended
Producer Responsibility targets and outcomes.



Support costs in achieving scheme outcomes and targets, including
communications and provision of public information on waste prevention
and

recycling,

efficiency reviews,

data

gathering and

reporting,

performance incentives, and supporting local authorities in contract
negotiations and variations with service providers.

5.4

On the face of it this sounds promising that funding will be available but of course this
was only suggested at the consultation stage, and we are yet to see any further detail
or draft legislation enshrining these commitments. Additionally, the financial support
is for the necessary costs of “effective and efficient systems”.

5.5

Discussion in the EPR consultation expands how “effective and efficient” will be
assessed. It is proposed to apply a performance model that would link the modelled
costs of service delivery to recycling performance so necessary costs are unlikely to
reflect actual costs. This model would take into account “geographic, socio-economic
and other factors” that impact on cost and performance. There are likely to be winners

Page 43

and losers and it is suggested that authorities under-performing would see payments
reduced accordingly, those over-performing may see payments increased.

5.6

The Government intends the EPR funding will arise from additional costs to
packaging and goods producers which are likely to be ultimately passed on to
consumers.

5.7

The Government has indicated that it would like to see the first EPR payments flowing
from the body administering the scheme to local authorities in the second half of the
2023/24 financial year. However, before then the scheme rules have to be firmed up,
a scheme administrator procured, and a monitoring and payment mechanism devised
and agreed.

6.0

HOW DOES A DEPOSIT RETURN SCHEME FIT IN?

6.1

A further initiative was being consulted upon alongside changes to waste collection
and the EPR for packaging – a deposit return scheme (DRS) for glass and plastic
bottles and metal drinks cans (and some other materials). It is envisaged that
consumers would pay a deposit on top of the retail price of their drink and return their
empty container to a reverse vending machine to receive the deposit back in some
form. The item would then be segregated for recycling generating clean streams of
material.

6.2

The DRS scheme will see several thousand reverse vending machines placed within
supermarkets and in public spaces and will likely remove a significant volume of
materials from recycling bins reducing recycling performance at the kerbside level.

6.3

What is unknown is how EPR payments to local authorities will be affected by the
removal of a significant amount of packaging from the waste they manage. In
addition, with the potential for a significant volume of recycling removed from kerbside
services refuse collection vehicles will be collecting a lot less materials and therefore
running inefficiently. This, in the longer term, may provide opportunities for
rationalising services (using smaller vehicles perhaps) or collecting other materials
as they emerge.

Page 44

7.0

WHAT ARE THE TIMESCALES FOR RaWS IMPLEMENTATION?

7.1

As indicated above, the Government would like to see moves to implement RaWS
changes from 2023. However, it is recognised that one of the big barriers to change
is contractual. The Government does not want to foot the bill for the impacts of
changing services mid-contract term so will accept the phased introduction of
changes until around 2031 where applicable and subject to confirmation.

8.0

NEXT STEPS ON THE RAWS

8.1

The RaWS’ objectives and aims as regards the circular economy, carbon reduction,
improvement of recyclate quality and the reduction of waste cannot be argued
against. However, how an authority achieves the Strategy’s objectives should be a
matter for local choice and best reflect local circumstances rather than be specified
centrally.

8.2

The comments very recently made by Defra (section 2.3 above) do suggests a less
strict approach to implementation, but this cannot be considered certain until further
official announcements are made during 2022. The Government’s preferred waste
collection and treatment option, if implemented across the GMCA, would increase
costs, increase the number of vehicles running on Greater Manchester’s roads (with
the accompanying increase in staff), require the development of new and/or
expanded facilities and potentially increased risk with very little benefit in terms of
recycling performance. There is also little certainty of cost recovery in the absence
of further details from Government.

8.3

For a key part of the Government’s strategy – food waste – there is reliance on
Anaerobic Digestion (AD) treatment capacity that is not available currently and no
certainty of markets for the resulting digestate and no certainty of cost recovery for
service changes made.

8.4

The GMCA has submitted its EPR, DRS and Consistency consultation responses.
Government indicated that during Spring 2022 it will publish its response to the
consultations and that will start to give a steer on the direction waste management
will be going in. Following this publication there will be further consultations on
statutory guidance and minimum service standards during 2022.

Page 45

8.5

Once this further information has been received and reviewed, we can start work on
our own household waste management strategy which will take 12 months or so to
develop and require a strategic environmental assessment and potentially public
consultation.

8.6

On the biowaste fraction of our waste – work has commenced on a strategy for how
we manage this waste stream from 2026. This will accelerate once we understand
what the Government will require of us in relation to the legal requirement for weekly
food waste collection. There is very little treatment capacity in the Northwest for
biowaste so we will need to consider a wide range of options for securing capacity for
our material.

8.7

The Waste and Resources team have developed a work programme for the next 18
months that will generate the information required to inform how GMCA responds to
RaWS. This work programme will involve:

Assessing the impacts of the RaWS through:
a. developing

our

own

household

waste

management

strategy to

accommodate its aims, objectives and obligations.
b. develop the TEEP assessment for our services; and/or
c. develop an implementation plan in discussion with the districts for changes
to services to reflect changed obligations.
d. modelling implications of future housing and population growth and waste
management services; and
e. develop a biowaste management strategy to identify our contracting and/or
infrastructure development strategy for this waste stream.

8.8

As further information is released from Government and assessed, a series of update
reports will be progressed through the GMCA governance structures to inform the
long-term strategic decisions that will be required for waste management as a result
of the RaWS.

Page 46

Agenda Item 8
GM Housing, Planning and Environment
Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Date:

01 February 2021

Subject:

Greater Manchester Go Neutral – Smart Energy Opportunity Pipeline

Report of:

Mark Atherton, Director of Environment, GMCA

Purpose of Report:
To update on the Go Neutral Smart Energy call-off framework, to support the city region’s
public bodies in optimising renewable energy generation and storage on their estates and
assets. The Go Neutral Framework aims to accelerate the delivery of up to 300MW of
renewable generation across the conurbation over the next 3 years through the creation of
portfolios of smart energy opportunities.

Recommendations:
The Committee is requested to:
1. Note the progress made in establishing the Go Neutral – Smart Energy
Framework
2. Note that if viable projects are achieved, GMCA partners may require additional
support to access funds to further develop and deliver the projects.
3. Note the environmental outcome is to substantially reduce the carbon emissions
of Greater Manchester’s public estate, through new and additional renewable
energy generation and storage capacity.

Contact Officers:
Mark Atherton, Director of Environment, GMCA
mark.atherton@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk
Sean Owen, Head of Low Carbon Policy, GMCA

Page 47

sean.owen@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk

1. Introduction/Background
1.1 Greater Manchester has set ambitious plans to be carbon neutral by 2038. Key to
achievement of this is increasing investment in smart energy infrastructure and clean
energy generation.

1.2 The Scatter GM preferred carbon reduction pathway sets out the need for solar PV on
50% of domestic properties and an additional 5.5km 2 on commercial roof space and
ground mounted sites. Deployment at this scale will require the region to develop a longterm pipeline of land, car park and building based generation opportunities with an
effective route to market.

1.3 Our response to this challenge is Go Neutral - a GMCA-led smart energy programme to
decarbonise our city region and deliver social value, community wealth-building and
inclusive growth, with a focus on affordability and impact.

1.4 In conjunction with other GMCA-led low-carbon initiatives, Go Neutral will put GM on the
pathway to:
-

Take control of how we generate, use, and trade our energy locally to create a
resilient and connected energy system.

-

Create investment opportunities that will support new jobs and skills on our pathway
to carbon neutral by 2038; and

-

Create greener, healthier, and more affordable lifestyles.

1.5 The Go Neutral programme will identify, develop, and deliver a pipeline of smart energy
opportunities via a range of investment and delivery models. The initial phase will seek

Page 48

to deliver 85 MW of solar power generation with battery storage and electric vehicle
charging infrastructure. These will be located on circa 430no. public sector owned land,
car park and building assets. It is expected to require circa £155m of capital investment
and £5.5m at-risk revenue expenditure, via a range of investment and delivery models.

2. Progress
2.1 Activity to assess, prioritise, and shortlist public sector owned assets is now nearing
completion. This has involved geospatial assessment of the sites, GMCA/partner
review, and determination of a preferred shortlist for the call-off framework. This exercise
will help to de-risk the sites being brought to market and provide clear signals to the
market on partners readiness to engage.

2.2 A total of 9,436 land assets, 864 car parks and 2,495 buildings were submitted by public
sector partners for the site assessment and prioritization exercise. For the initial phase,
circa 10% of these assets are undergoing review by GMCA partners. Of the sites that
have been reviewed and confirmed onto a preferred shortlist so far, we are on track to
achieve our target size of opportunity pipeline for the call-off framework.

2.3 Through this activity we have received unanimous support from partners (ten Districts,
Environment Agency and TFGM) to engage with the next stage of the process.

2.4 Ongoing soft market testing and engagement has endorsed our approach to developing
the opportunity pipeline and the intention to bring forward portfolios of opportunities into
the call-off framework. It is acknowledged that a portfolio approach will provide greater
opportunity for innovation, investment, and value sharing propositions.

2.5 Positive discussions are underway with Electricity Northwest Ltd (regulated business)
to support the programme in reviewing shortlisted sites for potential grid constraints and
opportunities. This insight will provide valuable information to support prospective
bidders in developing their proposals.
2.6 Discussions with GMCA’s Internal Governance Team and partners are underway on a
solution for data sharing, which will utilise the ISG structure already in place and will
require an NDA between GMCA and the awarded agents to the call-off framework.

Page 49

3. Framework Process
3.1 The framework has 3 lots to enable a broad coverage and/or portfolio of assets to be
catered for across buildings, car parks, ground mounted generation A 4th lot will
encompass all measure types with the ability for third party investment options to be
included.

3.2 During the tender exercise a 5th lot was envisaged, however due to the market
responses received the Building Integrated Battery storage lot was not taken forward

3.3 The awarded delivery agents are highlighted in the table below.

Lot 1: Building
mounted solar PV
(with
battery
storage)
:
Aberla
CorEnergy
Custom Solar
Emtec
EvoEnergy

Lot 2: Solar car Lot 3: Small scale Lot 4: Integrated
ports (with battery ground mounted smart
energy
storage)
solar PV
solutions

Aberla
Ameresco
Emtec
Polysolar
Vital Energy

Ameresco
CorEnergy
Custom
Emtec
Evo

SSE
Ameresco
Mitie
CorEnergy
Robertsons – Clear
Futures

NPS
PolySolar
Vital Energy

3.4 The framework is open to all public bodies across the UK, with a £300m framework
value. Entrants/users will be asked to sign a framework licence agreement, which
enables use of the framework alongside formalising a 1% rebate to GMCA.

3.5 Mini competitions will be operated to appoint suitable contractors for portfolios of
assets, with 4 stage gates thereafter leading to supply of services and installation as
follows:

Page 50



Stage Gate 1: Feasibility and Options Appraisal



Stage Gate 2: Investment Grade Proposals



Stage Gate 3: Development of Integrated Smart Energy System



Stage Gate 4: Delivery of Integrated Smart Energy system

3.6 GM districts will benefit from the recycled 1% rebate in the form of underwritten
investment grade audits, as from Stage Gate, abortive costs are incurred by the
framework users. This will de-risk the process for both user and developer/contractor
to ensure delivery is achieved.

4. Opportunities/risks
4.1. The key opportunities include:


Potential to deliver circa 85MW of new additional generation capacity to GM and
associated carbon savings.



A procurement framework that offers a flexible approach to project development and
delivery, based on strategic need and value



Opportunity to support local supply chains, apprenticeships, and employment
initiatives through deployment at scale



Options to leverage investment from the supply chain and private and community
sector funders to ensure that all viable projects can be brought forward to delivery



Utilisation of existing networks for potential suppliers/ consortia members, including
collaboration with Growth Company



Opportunity for Districts to collaborate with consequential efficiencies of scale



This work will dovetail with the ERDF-funded Unlocking Clean Energy GM project
and the IUK-funded Local Energy Market project to benefit from relevant intelligence,
as well as valuable insight for the local energy market platform and value sharing
propositions.

4.2. The key risks include:


A lack of appetite from GMCA partners to participate in the framework and tender
portfolio opportunities/ schemes meaning there is insufficient opportunity to make a
call-off framework worthwhile.

Page 51



The sites that are offered to the market prove unviable/ undevelopable, meaning
wasted time and cost in developing opportunities. It might also raise a lack of
confidence in the GM opportunity among prospective suppliers, with reputational
impact.



Offered pipeline or opportunities are unattractive to the market, giving rise to a lack
of interest from the market that will impact on delivery of targets.



Partners unwilling to share data on shortlisted assets to prospective bidders, giving
rise to insufficient interest from prospective suppliers in bidding for the framework due
to limited insight of the opportunity pipeline.



Insufficient resource/ timescales to support the set-up and ongoing management of
the call-off framework, meaning that we are unable to proceed, or proceed at slower
pace putting the previously agreed retention of business rate funding at risk.



Commercial case doesn’t stack up, creating a lack of investible opportunities, which
puts the development spend and ability to achieve targets at risk.

5. Financial Implications
5.1

Day to day management of the programme and working with the partners to build the
opportunity pipeline will be undertaken by committed funded roles in GMCA’s Low
Carbon, Data and Research Teams.

5.2

A call-off framework percentage fee model is proposed, whereby 1% of the capital
works is charged to the project/supplier for using the framework. It is proposed this
fee would be used to support framework management, quality assurance, and further
feasibility studies to enable future additional pipeline delivery.

5.3

Once the framework is up and running, GMCA and asset owners will seek to procure
feasibility studies and investment propositions via the framework. This will also be
funded using the previously agreed retained business rate funding (£400k less spend
on legal costs) and supplemented by the percentage fee model.

5.4

There is no financial requirement on Districts in setting up the framework and there
will be an agreed quota of feasibility studies that will be procured by GMCA on behalf
of the partners. However, District Officers will need to work with the central
coordinating team to identify and bring forward prospective smart energy
opportunities.

Page 52

5.5

The future financial implications on the partners will depend on what investment
model and delivery model they decide to take. This might involve 100% development
and capital expenditure, 0%, or a shared investment proposition. This is likely to be
determined before partners tender specific portfolios of opportunities. GMCA might
be required to support partners with accessing funds to develop and deliver their
projects.

6. Recommendations
The committee is requested to:
1. Note the progress made in establishing the Go Neutral – Smart Energy Framework
2. Note that if viable projects are achieved, GMCA partners may require additional support
to access funds to further develop and deliver the projects.
3. Note the environmental outcome is to substantially reduce the carbon emissions of
Greater Manchester’s public estate, through new and additional renewable energy
generation and storage capacity.

Page 53

This page is intentionally left blank

